MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
December 11, 2024, at 1:00 p.m.

Members: Mr. Glenn Beck

Mr. Tom Mitchell, Chair Mr. Bill Lennon

Mr. Phillip Rucks, Vice-Chair Dr. Trevor Smith
Mr. Daniel Hunt, Treasurer Mr. John Updike, Jr.
Staff:

Steven Hall, Executive Director and Program Manager
Tina Buice, Assistant Program Manager
Carisa Keller, Scientific Coordinator

AGENDA

Welcome and Call to Order - Tom Mitchell

Roll Call — Steven Hall

Presentation and Request for Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes — Steven Hall
Presentation of Treasurer’s Report - Kevin Metheny, Controller

vk wh R

Request for approval of Federal Income Tax Returns and Financial Audit Results for FY
ending 6/30/2024 - Steven Hall

Request for Approval of Proposed Project Withdrawals — Carisa Keller

Request for Approval of Proposed Project Amendments — Carisa Keller

Request for Approval of Proposed Project Planting Extensions — Carisa Keller

CRAFT Cycle Six and ETT Round Three Funding and Allocations Update — Steven Hall
10. Request for Approval of Proposed Outreach Opportunities — Steven Hall

11. Executive Director Updates — Steven Hall

12. New Business - Tom Mitchell

13. Adjourn

XN

Upcoming Meetings
Wednesday, February 12, 2025

March TBD, 2025
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Citrus Research and Field Trial (CRAFT) Foundation Inc.
Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting
December 11, 2024

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Citrus Research and Field Trial (CRAFT) Foundation, Inc. was
held on December 11, 2024. The meeting was properly noticed and recorded and was called to order at
1:00 p.m. Board Members present: Tom Mitchell, Chair, Glenn Beck, Daniel Hunt, Bill Lennon, Phil Rucks,
Dr. Trevor Smith, and Mr. Johnny Updike.

Others in attendance: Tina Buice, Melanie Burns, Steven Hall, Matt Joyner, Carisa Keller, Kevin Metheny,
Audrey Nowicki, Brandon Page, Taija Santos, Margaret Stricklen, Sal Tropea, and Tamara Wood.

1. Welcome and Call to Order: Mr. Mitchell welcomed the Board to the meeting and reported that this
meeting of the CRAFT Foundation, Inc., Board of Director’s was properly noticed in the Florida
Administrative Register on December 4, 2024.

2. Roll Call: Mr. Steven Hall called roll, determined a quorum was present.

3. Presentation and Request for Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes: Minutes from November 19,
2024, meeting were presented for approval.

Motion made by Mr. Glenn Beck, seconded by Mr. Bill Lennon, to approve November 19, 2024, meeting
minutes as presented; passed unanimously.

4. Presentation of 2023 Taxes and Fiscal Audit Results. Mr. Sal Tropea from Bunting, Tripp & Ingley, LLP
presented the 2023 Taxes and Fiscal Audit Results. Mr. Tropea’s firm issued a clean unmodified audit
report, and stated that no adjustments were made this year. Mr. Tropea stated that the Tax Return 990
mirrors the audit report and financial statements, and they will be available for the board to review and
approve at the next meeting.

5. Presentation of Treasurers report: Mr. Kevin Metheny presented the Treasurers Report for the five
months ending November 30, 2024. Some of the highlights include: $824,900 has been released as grower
payments under Cycle 5 and PEP programs so far this year; and a total of $7,376,780 has been released
as grower payments under Cycles 1-4, and ETT1 and ETT2 so far this year. In addition, interest income of
$586,823 has been earned and not yet designated for expenditure. At this time, undistributed grower
funds make up $23,648,325, which is almost 100% of the funds in the Money Market Account.

Motion made by Mr. Johnny Updike, seconded by Mr. Glenn Beck to approve the Treasurer’s Report as
presented; passed unanimously.

6. Request for Approval of Aerobotics Contract: Mr. Steven Hall presented the Aerobotics Contract for
approval. The contract is a two-year extension for services with a 10% increase in costs. Aerobotics has
kept their costs the same since inception, and this is the first cost increase they have requested.

Motion made by Johnny Updike, seconded by Mr. Glenn Beck to approve the proposed Aerobotics
contract as presented; passed unanimously.



7. Field Audit Staff Update and Request for Additional Staff: Mr. Steven Hall gave an update on the
field audit staff and the need for additional assistance. CRAFT is currently contracted with Mr. Duke
Chadwell to conduct project pre-audits, but has experienced some health issues lately. As a back-up to
Mr. Chadwell as he continues to recover, Mr. Hall requested the board expand its previous approval for
contract with Highlands County Citrus Growers Association to conduct pre-audits as needed in addition
to the previously approved site-verification audits and that both types of audits be paid at a flat-rate of
$300.00 each. Mr. Chadwell will remain the primary contractor for pre-audits and will have first right of
refusal with HCCGA providing backup services as needed.

Motion made by Mr. Johnny Updike, seconded by Mr. Glenn Beck to give Mr. Hall the authority to
expand the previously approved verification contract with Mr. Ray Royce to allow him to conduct pre-
audits and to convert pre-audit charges to a flat rate; passed unanimously.

8. Previous Cycle Project Payments Update and Request for Action Approval: Mr. Steven Hall gave
updates on Previous Cycle Overpayments, two old, and two new. The previously discussed overpayments
included ETT 2544, where after Board approval of Grower amendment, the contract size was reduced
from 658 acres to 141 acres following Payment 1. Resulting in a $49,350 overpayment.

Motion made by Mr. Glenn Beck, seconded by Mr. Updike to approve the contract amendment setting
future payments at SO and requiring repayment of the full amount (549,350) by May 31, 2025, passed
unanimously.

Previously discussed overpayments also included ETT-1085/ETT-2207 where 2207 was a duplicate of
1085, which had received $15,000 to date. The full $15,000 is being repaid by the grower and ETT-1085 is
being withdrawn. No action is required at this time.

New requests include 2019-006 and 2019-007 (same grower) where in both instances, the grower
submitted a claim, under contract entity name, in September 2022 and a second claim for the same
payment, under a different entity name, in February 2023. The result is a total overpayment of $15,900.

Motion made by Mr. Johnny Updike, seconded by Mr. Glenn Beck for staff to formally request
repayment of the full amount; passed majority vote. Mr. Hunt abstained from this vote.

In addition, ETT-2044 has a contract for 20 acres, but program payment records has it listed as a 51-acre
project. The grower has received $7,650 for Payment 1, but the contract value is only $7,000.

Motion made by Mr. Bill Lennon, seconded by Mr. Philip Rucks for staff to amend the contract to revise
payment schedule to reduce future payments to S0 and to require repayment of 5650 by the grower;
passed majority vote. Mr. Updike abstained from the vote.

Ms. Keller presented a project requesting a new amendment. Cycle 5 Project 404S, the grower would like
to move the plot from Osceola to Desoto County, and keep it at 35 acres, using bio-stimulants, but
changing the Scion / Rootstock from Hamlin on Swingle to Valencia on Swingle, and requests a planting
date extension to December 2025.

Motion made by Mr. Updike, seconded by Mr. Lennon to accept the amendment for project 2024_404S
as presented; passed majority vote. Mr. Beck abstained from the vote.



9. Craft Cycle Six and ETT Round three: Part A—funding and allocations update and discussion was tabled.

Mr. Steven Hall introduced the ETT Round 3 funding results. At this time, ETT application rules limit an
application to 250 acres. There is a grower who has submitted three applications, all exceeding the 250
acre limit, and were selected in the random drawing. Mr. Hall has asked for guidance from the board on
how to proceed.

Motion made by Mr. Updike, seconded by Mr. Beck to accept the three applications at the 250 acre
maximum; passed unanimously.

Mr. Hall noted that this action will result in additional funding for other projects because current
calculations are based on funding full acres requested.

Mr. Tom Mitchell asked the Board if they would like to review all of the PEP, Solid and Reset projects
submitted under Cycle 6 and ETT 3, or if they would like to accept the recommendations of the Technical
Working Group. The board agreed to accept the TWG recommendations and only hear presentations on
projects that were of concern to CRAFT staff.

Ms. Keller presented three projects for feedback from the Board.

Object ID 175 — Their nursery reported their trees will not be available until December 2026. Rootstock is
Civac, which the TWG states there is no data on. Due to the planting date, and to check to see if this
rootstock is commercially available, the board asked for this project to be waitlisted.

Object ID 194 — 30 acres of this project are in Cycle 2. The trees were planted then removed due to lack
of growth — Star Grapefruit. The grower applied to replant a second time in a CRAFT project.

Motion made by Mr. Updike, seconded by Mr. Beck to not approve Project ID 194, as re-entry into the
project is not allowed; passed unanimously.

Object ID 108 — Reset — Hamlin N13-32, OLL8. Ms. Keller asked whether or not the board wanted to split
this project into two contracts, since the varieties will not be harvested at the same time and that will
affect the data.

Motion made by Mr. Lennon, seconded by Mr. Beck to approve Object ID 108, but to split the project
according to scion; passed unanimously.

Motion made by Mr. Beck, seconded by Mr. Updike, to approve all projects recommended by TWG after
10-days for individual board review, provide an additional $601,650.00 to the ETT funding allocation to
fund ETT projects for first-time applicants, and divide the remaining funding between solid set projects
and reset projects as identified by Staff in conjunction with the TWG; passed majority vote. Mr. Mitchell
abstained from voting on projects 140, 141 and 144, Mr. Hunt abstained from voting on project 66, and
Mr. Rucks abstained from voting on project 189.

Note: Board members were provided the full list of TWG recommend projects to review and provide
individual objections to Staff for full board review by December 21, 2024. The final funding allocations
are as follows:



PEP Solid-Set Reset ETT Total

Board Final $2,706,000.00 | $5,929,745.00 $4,508,040.00 $3,679,200.00 | $16,822,985.00

Final Allocation % 16.09% 35.25% 26.80% 21.87% 100.00%

10. Executive Director Updates: Mr. Hall recognized the hard work put in by Ms. Keller and Mrs. Buice
with getting Cycle 6 projects and ETT-3 projects up and running.

11. New Business: There is no new business
12. Adjourn: Meeting adjourned at 2:34pm.
Upcoming meetings:

Wednesday, January 8th, 2025

Wednesday, February 12, 2025

I, Steven Hall, Executive Director and Corporate Secretary of the Citrus Research and Field Trials
Foundation, Inc., do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct minutes of the
proceedings taken at the Board of Directors meeting held December 11, 2024.

X_Otapan W@//

Executive Director and Corporate Secretary
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Independent Auditor's Report

The Board of Directors
Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.
Bartow, FL

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Citrus Rescarch and Field Trial Foundation, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc. as of June 30, 2024, and the changes in its net
position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc. and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about Citrus Rescarch and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards and Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Florida Auditor General, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 21, 2024,
on our consideration of Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Lake Wales, Florida
November 21, 2024



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Introduction

Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc. (CRAFT) is a direct support organization to provide assistance
to the Division of Plant Industry of the State of Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services. In
2019, CRAFT was formed to coordinate and manage broad scale field trial programs to determine the efficacy
of various citrus greening/huanglongbing (HLB, also known as “citrus greening”) treatments by collecting tree
health data from growers that monitor and report specified effects and results.

This section of CRAFT’s annual financial report presents CRAFT s analysis of its financial performance for the
year ended June 30, 2024. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction
with the financial statements and related note disclosures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Along with management’s discussion and analysis, the annual financial report includes the independent auditor’s
report and the financial statements of CRAFT. The financial statements also include notes that explain in more
detail some of the information in the financial statements. By referring to the accompanying notes to the financial
statements, a broader understanding of issues impacting financial performance can be realized.

The annual financial report also includes the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Also included is the Independent Auditor’s Report on
Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required the Uniform Guidance.
There is also a Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and notes thereto together with a Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

CRAFT recognizes revenues and expenses on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position
as grant funds are awarded by granting agencies and expenses as the obligation to expend those grant funds is
determined for approved research and field trial projects.

Statement of Net Position

The statement of net position presents the assets, liabilities and net position of CRAFT as of the end of the fiscal
year. A statement of net position is a point-in-time financial statement. Its purpose is to present to the readers of
the financial statements the current financial condition of CRAFT. Assets and liabilities are generally measured
using current values. The net position is one indicator of the current financial condition of CRAFT, while the
changes in net position is an indicator of whether the overall financial condition of the organization has improved
or worsened over a period of time.



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The following table presents CRAFT’s condensed statements of net position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Assets
Cash $31,617,853 § 9,226,352
Receivables 23,208 38,223
Total assets $31,641,061 § 9,264,575
Liabilities
Operating payables $ 29918  $ -
Deferred revenue 31,278,932 9,240,023
Total liabilities $31,308,850 $ 9,240,023
Net Position
Restricted net assets $ 332211 § 24,552

The payables/receivables are subject to delays from receipt of paperwork submitted by growers for field trials.
Repayments to growers for field trials cannot be completed until they have submitted all required reports.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the Organization’s revenue and
expense activity, categorized as operating and nonoperating. Operating revenues consist of state and private

grants for research and field trial contracts.

The following summarizes the Organization’s activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Operating revenues $19,719,008 $ 8,441,226
Operating expenses 19,411,349 8,416,787
Operating income 307,659 24,439
Nonoperating revenues - -
Increase in net position $ 307,659 $ 24,439




CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows provides information about the Organization’s financial results by reporting the
major sources and uses of cash. This information will assist in evaluating the organization’s ability to generate
net cash flows, its ability to meet its financial obligations as they come due, and its need for external financing.
Cash flows from operating activities show the net cash provided by the operating activities of the Organization.

The following summarizes the Organization’s cash flows for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Cash flows from:
Operating activitics $22,391,501 $ 7,675,639
Net increase in cash 22,391,501 7,675,639
Cash, begmning of year 9,226,352 1,550,713
Cash, end of year $31,617,853 $ 9,226,352

Economic Outlook

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Organization received funding from the United States Department of
Agriculture (USDA), and funding from Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services awarded
through Citrus Research and Development Foundation. Funding is dependent on legislative actions which are
never certain. The critical importance of containing the spread of huanglongbing (Citrus Greening) and field
trial of resistant varieties makes the mission of CRAFT important to the future of Florida citrus agriculture.
Contacting the Organization’s Financial Management

If you have any questions or need additional information, contact the Organization’s management at:

Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.

600 N. Broadway Ave.

Bartow, FL

Email: steven@craftdn.org

Or visit the website: craftfdn.org



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024
ASSETS
Cash $31,617,853
Contract payments receivable 23,208
Total assets $31,641,061

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Liabilities

Operating payables $ 29,918

Deferred revenue 31,278,932
Total liabilities 31,308,850

Net Position

Net position restricted by grantor as to purpose 332,211
Total net position 332,211

Total liabilities and net position $31,641,061




CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Support and Revenues
Research contract funding:
Government grants $ 19,411,350
Interest income 307,658
Total revenue and support 19,719,008
Operating Expenses and Supporting Services
Research and field trial contracts 17,605,295
Administrative support 1,806,054
Total expenses and supporting services 19,411,349
Increase in net position 307,659
Net position, beginning of period 24,552
Net position, end of period $ 332,211

See notes to accompanying financial statements.



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Operating Activities
Increase in net position

Adjustments to reconcile increase in net position
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Decrease in contract payments receivable
Increase in deferred revenue
Increase in operating payables
Net cash provided by operating activities
Net increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

See notes to accompanying financial statements.

§ 307,659

15,015
22,038,909
29,918

22,391,501

22,391,501

9,226,352

$31,617,853




CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organizational Activities

Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is a Florida not-for-profit organization which
has been certified as a direct support organization to provide assistance to the Division of Plant Industry of the
State of Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services. The Foundation was incorporated June 18,
2019.

The Foundation supports research in citrus propagation, citrus disease prevention and treatment, and economic
development within the Florida citrus industry. The Foundation coordinates and monitors research projects
funded by the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (FDACS), and monitors other
organizations.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The Foundation’s financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for business-type activities, as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Voluntary non-
exchange transactions are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Position

Without Donor or Grantor Restrictions - available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or
certain grantor) restrictions.

With Donor or Grantor Restrictions - subject to donor or grantor imposed restrictions. Some donor or grantor-
imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events
specified by the donor or grantor. Other donor or grantor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the
donor or grantor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor or grantor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose
for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, $329,765 of net position was subject to restrictions imposed by grantor
agencies or donors. Those funds are designated for grower contracts for research and field trials.

10



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Contract Payments Receivable

Contract payments receivable are stated at their estimated net realizable value.

Revenue Recognition

The Foundation recognizes grant revenue when all of the preconditions to receipt of the funds have been met.
Investment income is recognized when received or credited to the investment account.

Donated Goods and Services

The Foundation receives donated services from officers and member of the Board of Directors who assist the
Foundation in research and development. No amounts are recognized for these services in the accompanying
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.

Tax Status and Positions

The Foundation is a corporation chartered under the Florida nonprofit corporation statutes. It is also a 509(a)(3)
supporting organization that is recognized as a tax-exempt charity by the U.S. Department of Treasury under
Internal Revenue Code section 501(c)(3).

Although nonprofit organizations pay no tax on their exempt function income, they can be liable for taxes on
income earned from activities not related to their exempt purpose. For the year ended June 30, 2024,
management believes the Foundation engaged in no activities that were not related to their exempt purpose.

Management has evaluated its tax positions taken for all open tax years. Currently, the 2021-2023 tax years are
open and subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service. The Foundation is not currently under audit,
nor has it been contacted by the Internal Revenue Service. Based on the evaluation of the Foundation’s tax
positions, management believes all positions taken would be upheld under an examination. Therefore, no
provision for the effects of uncertain tax positions has been recorded for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Date of Management Review

Subsequent events were evaluated through November 21, 2024, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued.

11



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note B - Research Contract Funds Awarded

During the period ended June 30, 2024, the Foundation was awarded research contract funding from the
following sources:

Funding Agency Contract Funds Purpose
U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 5,991,236 Research and field trial contracts
U.S. Department of Agriculture 1,362,788  Administrative support

Florida Department of Agriculture and
Consumer Services (FDACS) passed through:
Citrus Research and Development Foundation 33,393,792 Research and field trial contracts

Florida Department of Agriculture and
Consumer Services (FDACS) passed through:
Citrus Research and Development Foundation 699,999  Admmistrative support

Total research contract funds awarded $ 41,447.815

The Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services is a fund recipient of the United States
Department of Agriculture. The Foundation is a subrecipient of funds from the USDA.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Foundation incurred administrative support expenses of $1,806,055 and
therefore only received $1,806,055 of the $2,062,787 awarded.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the Foundation incurred program service expenditures of $17,605,295 in
relation to the research and field trial contracts and therefore only recognized $17,605,295 of the $39,385,028

awarded the remainder is reported in deferred revenue, in the current year.

Note C - Concentration of Credit Risk

The carrying amount of the Foundation’s cash deposits are $31,617,853 for the year ended June 30, 2024. The
bank balances were $31,617,853 at June 30, 2024. Deposits are placed in banks that qualify as public
depositories pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. All such deposits are insured by Federal
depository insurance, up to specified limits of $250,000. The uninsured balance at June 30, 2024 were
$31,367,853. Subsequent to year end, management entered into a sweep agreement that mitigates the risk across
multiple financial institutions.
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.
Bartow, FL

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Citrus Research and Field Trial
Foundation, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2024,
and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have 1ssued our report thereon dated November 21,
2024.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Citrus Research and Field Trial
Foundation Inc.’s (the Foundation) internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Foundation’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication
is not suitable for any other purpose.

Lake Wales, Florida
November 21, 2024
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Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each
Major Federal and State Program; Report on Internal Control
Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Required by the
Uniform Guidance, and Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Florida Auditor General

The Board of Directors
Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.
Bartow, Florida

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement and Florida Chapter 10.650,
Rules of the Auditor General that could have a direct and material effect on each of Citrus Research and Field
Trial Foundation, Inc.’s major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. Citrus Research and
Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Florida Auditor General (FL
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards, the Uniform Guidance and FL Guidance are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc. and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal and state program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Citrus
Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Citrus Research and
Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s federal and state programs.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on Citrus
Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the FL
guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s compliance with the requirements of each
major federal and state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, the Uniform Guidance, and FL Guidance we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance and FL Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
and state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal and state program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal and state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control
over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
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over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance and FL guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Programs
Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited financial statements of the Foundation as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and have
issued our report thereon dated November 21, 2024, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Programs is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 1n the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards and State Financial
Assistance Programs is fairly stated in all material respeets in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Lake Wales, Florida
November 21, 2024
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CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL

ASSISTANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

ALN Contract Total Federal
Federal Grantor Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture 10.025 12-APPQS&T00 4,708,234
Total expenditures of federal awards $ 4,708,234

State Contract State
Florida Grantor CSFA No. Number Expenditures

Florida Department of Agriculture
and Consumer Services (FDACS):
Passed Through Citrus Research and Development
Foundation 42.023 23-026 14,703,116

Total expenditures of state financial assistance programs $14,703,116

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures
of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance.
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CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note A - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance (the Schedule)
includes the Federal and State grant activity of Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc. The information
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations,
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements for Federal Awards, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General. Because
the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Foundation, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Foundation.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the cash basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and Florida Chapter 10.650, Rules
of the Auditor General and policies in the Florida Single Audit Act, wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note C - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, inc. has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost
rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness identified?

e Significant deficiency identified?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
Internal control over major state programs:

e Material weakness identified?

e Significant deficiency identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major state programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Section 2 CFR 200.516 (a) and
Section 10.654(1)(e), Rules of the Auditor General?

Identification of major programs:

Federal Agency:
U.S. Department of Agriculture:

State Agency:
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

“Citrus Research and Field Trial Foundation, Inc.,
qualified as low-risk auditee?

“Schedule of Prior Audit Findings and Questioned
Costs - State Programs” attached?

“Corrective Action Plan” attached? (No findings required
to be reported under the Florida Single Audit Act.)

20

Unmodified opinion

Yes X No
Yes X No
Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X No

Unmodified opinion

Yes X No

ALN No. 10.025

CSFA No. 42.023

$ 750,000
X Yes No
X  Yes No

Yes X No



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section II - Financial Statement Findings
No matters are reported.

Section III - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs
There are no findings or questioned costs.

Section IV - State Awards Findings and Questioned Costs
There are no findings or questioned costs.
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CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL FOUNDATION, INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

There were no findings or questioned costs.
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BUNTING, TRIPP & INGLEY, LLP
230 EAST TILLMAN AVENUE
LAKE WALES, FL 33853-3714

863-676-7981

November 21, 2024

CITRUS RESEARCH AND HELD TRIAL
FOUNDATION, INC.

600 N. BROADWAY AVE SUITE 101
BARTOW, FL 33830

Dear Client;

This letter is to confirm and specify the terms of our engagement with CITRUS RESEARCH
AND FIELD TRIAL for the year ended June 30, 2024, and each year thereafter until notified
otherwise, and to clarify the nature and extent of the tax services we will provide.

Our engagement is limited to performing the following services:

1. Prepare the federal income tax return - Form 990 and any state income tax returns as
requested.

2. Prepare any entries we find necessary in connection with preparation of the income
tax returns.

You are responsible for compliance with the Corporate Transparency Act (CTA), if applicable
to your business, and for ensuring that any required reporting of beneficial ownership
information (BOI) is timely filed with the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (FInCEN) as
required by the CTA. Assisting you with your compliance with the CTA, including BOI
reporting, is not within the scope of this engagement. We are not responsible for advising you on
your compliance with the CTA, nor are we responsible for the preparation or submission of your
BOI reports to FinCEN. We encourage you to consult competent legal counsd if you have
questions about your compliance with the CTA's BOI reporting requirements.

This engagement does not cover the preparation of any financia statements, which, if we are to
provide, will be covered under a separate engagement letter.

You are responsible for the safeguarding of assets, the proper recording of transactions in the
books of accounts, the substantial accuracy of the financial records, and the full and accurate
disclosure of dl relevant facts affecting the return(s) to us. You are required to have
documentation to support business deductions, such as automobile mileage, business promotions,
meals, entertainment and travel. You aso have fina responsibility for the tax return and,
therefore, you should review the tax return carefully before you sign and file the return.

You are responsible for assuming al management responsihilities, and for overseeing any
services we provide by designating an individua, preferably within senior management, who
possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience. In addition, you are responsible for evaluating
the adequacy and results of the services performed and accepting responsibility for the results of
such services.



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL
FOUNDATION, INC.
Page Two

If, during our work, we discover information that affects prior-year tax returns, we will make you
aware of the facts. However, we cannot be responsible for identifying all items that may affect
prior-year returns. If you become aware of such information during the year, please contact us to
discuss the best resolution of the issue. We will be happy to prepare appropriate amended returns
as a separate engagement.

Our work in connection with the preparation of the tax return(s) does not include any procedures
designed to discover defalcations or other irregularities, should any exist. The returns will be
prepared solely from information provided to us without verification by us.

In accordance with federa law, in no case will we disclose your tax return information to any
location outside the United States, to another tax return preparer outside of our firm for purposes
of a second opinion, or to any other third party for any purpose other than to prepare your return
without first receiving your consent.

The Internd Revenue Code and regulations impose preparation and disclosure standards with
noncompliance pendties on both the preparer of a tax return and on the taxpayer. To avoid
exposure to these penalties, it may be necessary in some cases to make certain disclosures to you
and/or in the tax return concerning positions taken on the return that do not meet these standards.
Accordingly, we will advise you if we identify such a Situation, and we will discuss those tax
positions that may increase the risk of exposure to pendties and any recommended disclosures
with you before completing the preparation of the return. If we conclude that we are obligated to
disclose a position and you refuse to permit the disclosure, we reserve the right to withdraw from
the engagement. Likewise, where we disagree about the obligation to disclose a position, you
also have a right to choose another professional to prepare your return. In either event, you agree
to compensate us for our services to the date of withdrawal. Our engagement with you will
terminate upon our withdrawal.

The IRS permits you to authorize us to discuss, on a limited basis, aspects of your return for one

year after the return's due date. Y our consent to such a discussion is evidenced by checking a box
on the return. Unless you tell us otherwise, we will check that box authorizing the IRS to discuss
your return with us.

It is our policy to keep records for seven years. However, we do not keep any of your origina
records, so we will return those to you upon the completion of the engagement. When records are
returned to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect the records for possible future use,
including potentia examination by governmenta or regulatory agencies. By signing this
engagement letter, you acknowledge and agree that upon the expiration of the seven year period,
we are free to destroy these records related to this engagement.



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL
FOUNDATION, INC.
Page Three

Certain communications involving tax advice are privileged and not subject to disclosure to the
IRS. By disclosing the contents of those communications to anyone, or by turning over
information about those communications to the government, you, your employees, or agents may
be waiving this privilege. To protect this right to privileged communication, please consult with
us or your attorney prior to disclosing any information about our tax advice. Should you decide
that it is gppropriate for us to disclose any potentialy privileged communication, you agree to
provide us with written, advance authority to make that disclosure.

Working Papers, Correspondence and Other Documents

Bunting, Tripp & Ingley, LLP considers e-mail to be an important business tool, and our partners
and staff endeavor to make appropriate use of this facility in dealings with clients. However,
there are certain risks associated with e-mail communication and, as a result, its use is subject to
the following protocol:

We will use email, where appropriate, to help acceerate the process of exchanging
information, including confidential information, between the Company and any outside
specialists or other entities engaged by Bunting, Tripp & Ingley, LLP.

Each party will treat e-mail with the same priority as communications sent by post or fax,
but each understands that there may be delays in receiving e-mails over which the
addressees have no control;

Any ingructions given in an email or attachment thereto that may affect the scope of our
work must be confirmed promptly by a hard copy;

No party shal send any other party information that might be considered obscene,
defamatory or in any other way in breach of any laws or regulaions in any relevant
jurisdiction.

The Company acknowledges that e-mail travels over the public internet, which is not a secure
means of communication and, thus confidentiadity of the transmitted information could be
compromised through no fault of Bunting, Tripp & Ingley, LLP. All sensitive data (tax returns,
financid statements, etc.) between Bunting, Tripp & Ingley, LLP and you should be transmitted
through our encrypted portal using SHAREFILE technology by Citrix™. We will assist you in
using this tool to protect the sensitive nature of information sent between us. Please see our
Website for further information regarding this encryption tool. Bunting, Tripp & Ingley, LLP
takes no responghility for the subsequent use of any information that may be provided to you or
your designee once it has been sent.



CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL
FOUNDATION, INC.
Page Four

In the event of a dispute related in any way to our services, our firm and you agree to discuss the
dispute and, if necessary, to promptly mediate in a good faith effort to resolve. We will agree on
a mediator, but if we cannot, either of us may apply to a court having persona jurisdiction over
the parties for gppointment of a mediator. We will share the mediator's fees and expenses
equally, but otherwise will bear our own attorney's fees and mediation cost. Participation in such
mediation shall be a condition to either of us initiating litigation. In order to alow time for the
mediation, any applicable statute of limitations shall be tolled for a period not to exceed 120 days
from the date either of us first requests in writing to mediate the dispute. The mediation shal be
confidentia in al respects, as alowed or required by law, except our fina settlement positions at
mediation shdl be admissible in litigation solely to determine the prevailing party's identity for
purposes of the award of attorneys fees.

If the foregoing fairly sets forth your understanding, please sign the enclosed copy of this letter
in the space indicated and return it to our office. However, if there are other tax returns you
expect us to prepare, please inform us by noting so at the end of the return copy of this letter.

We want to express our appreciation for this opportunity to work with you.

Very truly yours,

BUNTING, TRIPP & INGLEY, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Accepted By:

Date:



BUNTING, TRIPP & INGLEY, LLP
230 EAST TILLMAN AVENUE
LAKE WALES, FL 33853-3714

863-676-7981

November 21, 2024

CONFIDENTIAL

CITRUS RESEARCH AND FELD TRIAL
FOUNDATION, INC.

600 N. BROADWAY AVE SUITE 101
BARTOW, FL 33830

Dear Client:

We have prepared the following returns from information provided by you without verification
or audit.

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax (Form 990)
We suggest that you examine these returns carefully to fully acquaint yourself with al items
contained therein to ensure that there are no omissions or misstatements. Attached are
instructions for signing and filing each return. Please follow those instructions carefully.
Enclosed is any material you furnished for use in preparing the returns. If the returns are
examined, requests may be made for supporting documentation. Therefore, we recommend that
you retain al pertinent records for at least seven years.
We recommend that you use certified mail with postmarked receipts for proof of timely filing.
In order that we may properly advise you of tax considerations, please keep us informed of any
significant changes in your financia affairs or of any correspondence received from taxing
authorities.
If you have any questions, or if we can be of assistance in any way, please call.

Sincerdy,

BUNTING, TRIPP & INGLEY, LLP




Filing Instructions

CITRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL
FOUNDATION, INC.

Exempt Organization Tax Return

Taxable Year Ended June 30, 2024

Date Due May 15, 2025

Remittance:  None is required. Your Form 990 for the tax year ended 6/30/24 shows no
balance due.

Signature: You are using a Persona ldentification Number (PIN) for signing your return
electronically. Sign the IRS e-file Authorization and mail it as soon as possible
to:

BUNTING, TRIPP & INGLEY, LLP
P. O. Box 990

Lake Wales, FL, 33859-0990

or FAX to: 863-676-8899

or email to: info@bticpa.com

Important: Your return will not be filed with the IRS until the signed IRSe-
file Signature Authorization form has been received by this office.

Other: Initial and date the copies of the IRS e-file Signature Authorization and the Form
990. Retain them for your records. If previoudy signed and returned no further
action is required for Form 8879-TE.

Your return is being filed electronically with the IRS and is not required to be
mailed. Mailing a paper copy of your return to the IRS will delay the processing
of your return.

If checked, the following items are aso included for your records:

Current Depreciation Schedule for the year ended 6/30/24

Future Depreciaion schedule for the year ending 6/30/25

A copy of your final Working Trial Balance (after any adjusting entries)

A copy of your Adjusting Entries (please contact us if you need assistance with the
posting of these entries)
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IRS E-file Signature Authorization
rom 3879-TE for a Tax Exempt Entity OMB No- 15450047
For calendar year 2023, or fiscal year beginning . .. . . .. 7/ 01 .., 2023, and ending . . . ... 6/ 30 20 24 R
Department of the Treasury Do not send to the IRS. Keep for your records. 2023
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form8879TE for the latest information.
Name of flr O TRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TR AL EIN or SSN
FOUNDATI ON, | NC. 84- 2274193

Name and title of officer or person subject to tax ~ STEVVEN HALL
PROGRAM MANAGER/ SEC

Part | Type of Return and Return Information
Check the box for the return for which you are using this Form 8879-TE and enter the applicable amount, if any, from the return. Form
8038-CP and Form 5330 filers may enter dollars and cents. For all other forms, enter whole dollars only. If you check the box on line 1a, 2a,
3a, 44, 5a, 6a, 7a, 8a, 9a, or 10a below, and the amount on that line for the return being filed with this form was blank, then leave line 1b, 2b,
3b, 4b, 5b, 6b, 7b, 8b, 9b, or 10b, whichever is applicable, blank (do not enter -0-). But, if you entered -0- on the return, then enter -0- on the
applicable line below. Do not complete more than one line in Part I.

la Form 990 check here ? b Total revenue, if any (Form 990, Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1b 19, 719, 008
2a Form 990-EZ check here b Total revenue, if any (Form 990-EZ, line9) 2b
3a Form 1120-POL check here | | b Total tax (Form 1120-POL, line22) 3b
4a Form 990-PF check here | | b Tax based on investment income (Form 990-PF, Part V, line5) 4b
5a Form 8868 check here | | b Balance due (Form 8868, line3c) 5b
6a Form 990-T check here b Total tax (Form 990-T, Part Ill, line4) 6b
7a Form 4720 check here E b Total tax (Form 4720, Part lll, line 1) ......................................... 7b
8a Form 5227 check here L1 b FMV of assets at end of tax year (Form 5227, ltemD) ................... 8b
9a Form 5330 check here L { b Tax due (Form 5330, Part Il, line 19) ........................................ 9b
10a Form 8038-CP check here ... .. .. L1 b Amount of credit payment requested (Form 8038-CP, Part lll, line 22) .. 10b
Part Il Declaration and Signature Authorization of Officer or Person Subject to Tax
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | am an officer of the above entity or |:| | am a person subject to tax with respect to (hame
of entity) , (EIN) and that | have examined a copy of the

2023 electronic return and accompanying schedules and statements, and, to the best of my knowledge and belief, they are true, correct, and
complete. | further declare that the amount in Part | above is the amount shown on the copy of the electronic return. | consent to allow my
intermediate service provider, transmitter, or electronic return originator (ERO) to send the return to the IRS and to receive from the IRS (a) an
acknowledgement of receipt or reason for rejection of the transmission, (b) the reason for any delay in processing the return or refund, and (c)
the date of any refund. If applicable, | authorize the U.S. Treasury and its designated Financial Agent to initiate an electronic funds withdrawal
(direct debit) entry to the financial institution account indicated in the tax preparation software for payment of the federal taxes owed on this
return, and the financial institution to debit the entry to this account. To revoke a payment, | must contact the U.S. Treasury Financial Agent at
1-888-353-4537 no later than 2 business days prior to the payment (settlement) date. | also authorize the financial institutions involved in the
processing of the electronic payment of taxes to receive confidential information necessary to answer inquiries and resolve issues related to
the payment. | have selected a personal identification number (PIN) as my signature for the electronic return and, if applicable, the consent to
electronic funds withdrawal.

PIN: check one box only

|XI | authorize BUNTI I\G’ TRIPP & | I\G-EY’ LLP to enter my PIN 74193 as my signature
ERO firm name Enter five numbers, but

do not enter all zeros

on the tax year 2023 electronically filed return. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state
agency(ies) regulating charities as part of the IRS Fed/State program, | also authorize the aforementioned ERO to enter my PIN on the
return’s disclosure consent screen.

|:| As an officer or person subject to tax with respect to the entity, | will enter my PIN as my signature on the tax year 2023 electronically

filed return. If | have indicated within this return that a copy of the return is being filed with a state agency(ies) regulating charities as part
of the IRS Fed/State program, | will enter my PIN on the return’s disclosure consent screen.

Signature of officer or person subject to tax Date
Part Il Certification and Authentication

ERO's EFIN/PIN. Enter your six-digit electronic filing identification
number (EFIN) followed by your five-digit self-selected PIN.

| kkhkkxkkkkkkhkk*x

Do not enter all zeros

| certify that the above numeric entry is my PIN, which is my signature on the 2023 electronically filed return indicated above. | confirm that |
am submitting this return in accordance with the requirements of Pub. 4163, Modernized e-File (MeF) Information for Authorized IRS e-file
Providers for Business Returns.

ERO's signature Date

ERO Must Retain This Form — See Instructions
Do Not Submit This Form to the IRS Unless Requested To Do So

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see back of form. Form 8879-TE (2023
DAA
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om 990

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.
Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023

Open to Public
Inspection

A For the 2023 calendar year, or tax year beginning 07/ 01/ 23 , and ending 06/ 30/ 24

B Check if applicable:
Address change

|:| Name change

|:| Initial retul

C Name of organ

ization

FOUNDATI ON, I NC.

C TRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TR AL

Doing business as

D Employer identification number

84-2274193

m 600 N.

Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address)

BROADWAY AVE SU TE 101

Room/suite

E Telephone number

863- 333- 2931

FinaI_ return/ City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
0 ‘;”::::remm BARTON FL 33830 & Guoss recepss 19, 719, 008
F Name and address of principal officer:
|:| Application pending STE\/EN HALL H(a) Is this a group return for subordinates? |:| Yes |X| No
600 N. BROO\DAAY AVE H(b) Are all subordinates included? |:| Yes |:| No
BARTOWN FL 33830 If "No," attach a list. See instructions
| Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) |_| 501(c) ( ) (insert no.) |_| 4947(a)(1) or |_| 527
J  Website: (:F\)A |_L]\| O% H(c) Group exemption number
K Form of organization: [Xl Corporation |_| Trust |_| Association |_| Other | L Year of formation: 2019 | M State of legal domicile: FL
Part | Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activites:
| SEESOHEDULE O
B |
s
NN
8 2 Check this box if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
3 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line ey 3 7
8 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1) 4 7
g 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2023 (Part V, line2a) 5 0
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) 6 16
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VI, column (C), ine12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line-31 .. .. . .| oo bl i 7b 0
Prior_Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VI, line 1h) 8, 415, 605 19, 411, 350
2 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, ine2g) 0
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4,and 7d) 25, 620 307, 658
® | 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11¢) 0
12 Total revenue — add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) .. ... .. ... . 8, 441, 225 19, 719, 008
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines1-3) 0
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), ine4) 0
« | 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10) 0
2 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11¢) 0
§ b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line2s) 0 .......
W 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24¢) 8, 416, 787 19, 411, 350
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 8,416, 787 19, 411, 350
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 122 . 24, 438 307, 658
6§ Beginning of Current Year End of Year
%‘—E 20 Total assets (Part X, line1¢) 9, 264, 574 31, 641, 061
<] 21 Total liabiltes (Part X, line 26) 9, 240, 023 31, 308, 852
%% 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 .. ... . ... .. ... ... .. ... ... 24, 551 332, 209
Part Il Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

S|gn Signature of officer | Date
Here STEVEN HALL PROGRAM NMANAGER/ SEC

Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |:|if PTIN
Paid ROGER A | NGLEY 11/ 21/ 24 | seltemployed | P01276427
Preparer | fiis name BUNTING TRIPP & |INGLEY, LLP Fim's EIN 59- 0673514
Use Only 230 EAST TILLMAN AVENUE

Fim's address LAKE WALES, FL 33853-3714 phone no. _ 863- 676- 7981

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions

[X[ves [ [No_

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.
DAA

Form 990 (2023
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Form 990 (2023) Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL 84-2274193 Page 2

Part Ill Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthis Part Il ... ... ... .. . . . . . ... .. .. ... ... .. |X|

1

Briefly describe the organization's mission:

SEE SCHEDULE O

2

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? |:| Yes |X| No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program

services? |:| Yes |X| No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by

expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,

the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

RESUL TS,
4b (Code: ) (Expenses ¢ including grants of $ ) (Revenue ¢ )
N A
4c (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)

(Expenses  $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4e Total program service expenses 19, 213, 155

DAA

Form 990 (2023
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Form 990 (2023) Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL 84-2274193 Page 3
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule A 1| X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructons 2 | X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part 3
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Pt 4 -~~~ 4
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197 If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part it~ 5
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part| 6
7  Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Prtu4 7
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Partnt 8
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Parttiv.. ...~ ... 9
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi-endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Partv. 10
11  If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is “Yes,” then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
VII, VIII, IX, or X, as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule D, Partvi 1la X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Partvit 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartV((t- 1lc X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part 1IX 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X lle X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If “Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts Xl and XUl 12a X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XIl is optional 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 X
1l4a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts landtv....... 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts landtv. .. 15 X
16  Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Partts itandtv. ... 16 X
17  Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Partu 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VI, line 9a?
If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part 1l ... 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If “Yes,” complete Schedule H 20a X
b If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts land Il ... .. ... ............................ 21 X

DAA Form 990 (2023
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Form 990 (2023) Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL 84-2274193 Page 4
Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Yes [ No

22  Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts landit-~~~~~ 22 X
23 Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J 23 | X

24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b

through 24d and complete Schedule K. If “No,” go to line 252 24a X
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period excepton? 24b
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the yearz 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part1 25a X

b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior

year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part! 25b X
26  Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current

or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%

controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partii -~~~ 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key

employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee

member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these

persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partut 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule

L, Part 1V, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions).

a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If

"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partlv.. 28a X

A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Parttv........................... 28b X

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? If

“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Partlv.. 28c X
29  Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? If “Yes,” complete Scheduem 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified

conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Scheduem® 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If “Yes,” complete Schedule N, Part1 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule N, Parttit 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations

sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part 33 X
34  Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, Il

orlV,and PartV,line1 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(23> 35a X

b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a

controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 35b
36  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable

related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line2 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization

and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Partvi 37
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and

19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. . ... .. ... ... e 38 | X

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V

Yes | No
la Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a | 4
b  Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable b | O
Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) WIiNNINGS t0 PriZe WINNEIS? .. ... e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1c X

DAA Form 990 (2023
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Form 990 (2023) Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL 84-2274193 Page 5
Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued) Yes No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a | O
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? 3a X
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No” to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedueo 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a X
b If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
If “Yes” to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T> 5c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributons? 6a X
b If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not tax deductible? 6b
7  Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? 7a
If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7b
¢ Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required 10 file FOrM 82822 7c
d If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? 7f
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? 79
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? 8
9  Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b
10  Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part vil, line12 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club faciltes 10b
11  Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 1la
b  Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due or received from them.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year .. ... ... ... ... | 12b |
13  Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a s the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health pans 13b
¢ Enter the amount of reservesonhand 13c
1l4a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year> 14a X
b If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedueo ... 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15
If “Yes,” see instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? . . . ... . . ... . .. .. 16
If “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
17  Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, any disqualified or other person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 49537 . . . 17
If “Yes,” complete Form 6069.

DAA

Form 990 (2023
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Form 990 (2023) Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL 84-2274193 Page 6
Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI ... ... e
Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes [ No

la Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year 1a | 7

If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain on Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent b | 7
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2

3  Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct

supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?

4  Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?

[¢)]

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?
6  Did the organization have members or stockholders?
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint

one or more members of the governing body?> 7a
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,

stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? 7b

8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following:

(o230 (21 E- [¢V]

XX IXIX|X|X | X

a The governing body? 8a

b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 8b

9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at

x| >

the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O ..., .. 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

Yes [ No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X

b If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,

affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b

1la Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 1lla

b Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,” go to line 13 12a

b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? | 12b
¢ Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”
describe on Schedule O how this was done 12c

13  Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13

14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14

15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a

b Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b

If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? 16a X

b If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the

x| >

x| >

organization’s_exempt status with respect to SUCh arrangemMeNS? . . . . . . ... ..ottt 16b
Section C. Disclosure
17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be fled NONE
18  Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)

(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

|:| Own website |:| Another's website |X| Upon request |:| Other (explain on Schedule O)
19 Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,

and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.
20 State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records.

CRAFT FQOUNDATI ON 600 N BROADWAY AVE SU TE 101
BARTOW FL 33830 863- 698- 9276

DAA Form 990 (2023




1718E 11/21/2024 9:14 AM

Form 990 (2023) Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL 84-2274193

Page 7

Part VI Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPart VIl .. ... oo
Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

la Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

o List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
e List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

o List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than

$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the

organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

©
A B Position D £ =
Name( a:1d title Avfara)\ge tgig,nfr:l;::i)zgg;ei ;hl?gtr? r; Repf)r'()ab!e Rep(()r'()ab!e Estimategd) amount
e, | St a gy |
(list any C3121921% |18& & organization (W-2/ organizations (W-2/ from the
hours for =<1 2138 |5 |B3| 2 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
related gslg| |2 [&2]F 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
organizations =4 2 8 g
below al = 3| B
dotted line) 3 § %
@ TAVARA WOOD
T B 40. 00
FORVER PROG MR / SEC 0. 00 X 169, 017 0
@ GLENN BECK
SRV PP B 1.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 [X 0 0
@ DANI EL  HUNT
TP O 1.00
TREASURER 0.00 [X 0 0
#JOHAN UPDI KE JR
RURUPY B 1.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 [X 0 0
e TOM M TCHELL
RPN O 0.00
CHAI RVAN 0.00 | X 0 0
© PH LLI P RUCKS
TP B 1.00
VI CE CHAl RVAN 0.00 [X X 0 0
7 DR TREVOR SM TH
RURUPY B 1.00
BOARD MEMBER 0.00 [X 0 0
© STEVEN HALL
TR B 1.00
PROGRAM NVANAGER/ SEC 0. 00 X 0 0
©)
(10)
1D

DAA
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Form 990 (2023) 'l TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL 84- 2274193 Page 8
Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
©
Position
() (B) (do not check more than one (D) E) F
Name and title Average box, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustee) compensation compensation of other
per week S=T = =<l = from the from related compensation
(list any -2l 2 ] 5 3&| ¢ organization (W-2/ organizations (W-2/ from the
hours for 5| E|8 | |23 3 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
related %E_: S -3 85 - 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
organizations Tz 2 % E]
below 2 g o | 8
dotted line) e s g,
(12
(13
(14
(15)
(16)
@an
(18)
(19
1b  Subtotal ... . . 169, 017
¢ Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A ...............
d Total (add linestband 1c) ... .. 169, 017

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of

reportable compensation from the organization

Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual . 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,0007? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
NAVIQURL 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person .. ............. ... i, 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.
A B C
Name and b(us)lness address Descriptio(n )of services Comp(en)sation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization

DAA

Form 990 (2023
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Form 990 (2023) Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL

84-2274193

Part Vi

Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI

QY

Total revenue

B)
Related or exempt
function revenue

©
Unrelated
business revenue

(D)
Revenue excluded
from tax under
sections 512-514

Contributions, Gifts, Grants
and Other Similar Amounts

1

Q@

-~ o O T

Federated campaigns la

Membership dues 1b

Fundraising events 1c

Related organizations 1d

19,411, 350

Government grants (contributions) le

All other contributions, gifts, grants,
and similar amounts not included above ........ 1f

Noncash contributions included in
lines 1a-1f 1g |$

19,411, 350

Progkram Service
evenue

2a

Q@ - ® Qo O T

Business Code

Other Revenue

¢ Gain or (loss) 7c

8a

10a

307, 658

307, 658

(i) Real (i) Personal

Gross rents 6a

Less: rental expenses | 6b

Rental inc. or (loss) 6C

Net rental income or (I0SS) ... ..ot

Gross amount from (i) Securities (i) Other

sales of assets
other than inventory | 7@

Less: cost or other
basis and sales exps. [ 7b

Net gain or (I0SS) ..........cooii e

Gross income from fundraising events
(not including ¢
of contributions reported on line

1c). See Part IV, line 18 8a

Less: direct expenses 8b

Net income or (loss) from fundraising events .....................

Gross income from gaming
activities. See Part IV, line 19 9a

Less: direct expenses 9b

Net income or (loss) from gaming activities .......................

Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances 10a

Less: cost of goods sold 10b

Miscellaneous
Revenue

1lla

® o o T

Business Code

12

19, 719, 008

307, 658

0

DAA

Form 990 (2023
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Form 990 (2023)

G TRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL

84-2274193

Part IX

Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, Total (eﬁznenses Progralgr?)service Managesgent and Fund(Ea)ising
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expenses
1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line 22
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and
foreign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B)
7 Other salaries and wages
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
9 Other employee benefts
10 Payroll taxes
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management
b Legad
¢ Accounting 166, 575 166, 575
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, fist line 11g expenses on Schedule 0.)
12 Advertising and promotion 601, 220 571, 159 30, 061
13 Office expenses 31, 186 29, 627 1, 559
14 Information technology
15 Royaltes
16 Occupancy
17 Travel 18, 432 18, 432
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest
21 Payments to affliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization
23 Insurance 4, 148 4, 148
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
a GRONER PAYMENTS - CRDF - 14, 262, 295 14, 262, 295
b ~GROAER PAYMENTS - USDA - 3, 343, 000 3, 343, 000
c . PERSONNEL EXPENSE - USDA 340, 873 340, 873
d . STRATEG C SERWI CES - CON 300, 000 300, 000
e Al other expenses 343, 621 343, 621
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e . . .. 19, 411, 350 19, 213, 155 198, 195 0
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check herelﬁ if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720) . ... ...........
DAA Form 990 (2023)
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Form 990 (2023) Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL 84-2274193 Page 11
Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X D_
A (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing 5,750,731 1 13, 684, 575
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 3,475,620]| 2 17,933, 278
3 Pledges and grants receivable, n et 3
4 Accounts receivable, net 38, 223| 4 23, 208
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
%) under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)B) 6
aé 7 Notes and loans receivable, n et 7
<| 8 Inventories forsaleoruse 8
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of SchedueD 10a
b Less: accumulated depreciaton 10b 10c
11 Investments—publicly traded securites 11
12 Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line1z 12
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line1z. ... 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets. See Part Iv, ine1z. 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33) ................. ... ... ....... 9, 264, 5741 16 31, 641, 061
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17 29,919
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 9, 240, 023 19 31, 278, 933
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilites 20
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
? 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
p= trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
E controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
—' |23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third paries 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third partes 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D 25
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 ... ... .. ... ... ... 9, 240, 023 ] 26 31, 308, 852
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here |X|
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
& |27 Net assets without donor restricions 24,551 27 332, 209
@ |28 Net assets with donor restrictons 28
e Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here D
I and complete lines 29 through 33.
E 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 29
§ 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment und 30
£ |31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 31
g 32 Total net assets or fund balances 24,551 32 332, 209
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances .............. .. ... .. .. . . i 9, 264, 574 33 31, 641, 061

DAA

Form 990 (2023



1718E 11/21/2024 9:14 AM

Form 990 (2023) Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TR AL 84-2274193 Page 12
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets

1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIIl, column (A), ine12) 1 19, 719, 0
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), ine25) 2 19, 411, 350
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from lipez 3 307, 658
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, coumn (A 4 24,551
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 5
6 Donated services and use of facilites 6
7 Investment expenses 7
8 Prior period adjustments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedueo) 9
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line
e 10 N (=) ) I T 10 332, 209
Part XIl Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XU . |:|
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash |X| Accrual |:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain on
Schedule O.
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.
|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b X

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both.
|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis

c If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of

the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O.
3a As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? 3a

b If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the
reguired audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

3b
Form 990 (2023
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SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support OMB No. 15450047
(Form 990) Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 2023
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization G TR[JS RESEARO-' AND Fl ELD TR| AL Employer identification number
FOUNDATI ON, | NC. 84- 2274193
Part | Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's name,

city, and state:
An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)
A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).
An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)
An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:
An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)
11 H An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).
An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

< I I I A I O I

10

Q@

|:| Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b |:| Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c Type Il functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d |:| Type Il non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness

requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e |:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type Il, Type IlI
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f  Enter the number of supported organizations I:I

g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization (iv) Is the organization (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of
organization (described on lines 1-10 listed in your governing support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)
Yes No
)
(B)
©
(D)
E)
Total
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TRl AL 84-2274193 Page 2
Part Il Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Ill.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (@) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”)
2 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf
3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge
4  Total. Add lines 1 through3
5  The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column ()
6 Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4 ..
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (@) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023 (f) Total
7  Amounts from line4
8  Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources . .. ... ... ...
9  Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on ........ .. ...,
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VL) .....................
11  Total support. Add lines 7 through 10
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructons) | 12
13  First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this BOX ANnd STOD NeIe . ... ...ttt ettt iiiiiiiiiiii.. |_|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2023 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, colurin @) 14 %
15  Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Il, line24 15 %
16a 33 1/3% support test — 2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton |:|
b 33 1/3% support test — 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organizaton |:|
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization |:|
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test — 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization |:|
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see

instructions

[]

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TRl AL 84-2274193

Page 3

Part 1lI Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II.

If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part Il.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023

(f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees

received. (Do not include any “unusual grants.”) 2,739, 226 3, 555, 866 4,191, 701 8, 415, 605 19, 411, 350

38, 313, 748

2 Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the
organization's tax-exempt purpose

25, 620 307, 658

333, 278

3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513 700 47

747

4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended on its behalf

5  The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge

6  Total. Add lines 1 through 5 2,739, 926 3, 555, 913 4,191, 701 8, 441, 225 19, 719, 008

38,647,773

7a  Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

¢ Addlines7aand7b

8  Public support. (Subtract line 7c from
line6)

38,647,773

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2019 (b) 2020 (c) 2021 (d) 2022 (e) 2023

(f) Total

9  Amounts from line 6 2,739, 926 3, 555, 913 4,191,701 8, 441, 225 19,719, 008

38,647,773

10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources ...

b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

¢ Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on . ...

12 Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Partvty

13  Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,

and 12.) 2,739, 926 3, 555, 913 4,191,701 8, 441, 225 19,719, 008

38,647,773

14  First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

15  Public support percentage for 2023 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, courn () = 15 100. 00 %
16__ Public support percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Ill, iNne 15 . . il 16 100. 00 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2023 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, courn ¢ 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2022 Schedule A, Part Ill, line17 18 %
19a 33 1/3% support tests — 2023. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line

17 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization ..................... |X|

b 33 1/3% support tests — 2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization................. |:|

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions ......................... |:|

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TRl AL 84-2274193 Page 4
Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 on Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If “Yes,” answer
lines 3b and 3c below. 3a

b  Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b
¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c
4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? If
“Yes,” and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part |, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4da

b  Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a
b  Type I or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization's organizing document? 5b
¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity

with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line
7? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations

described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b  Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type |l supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? If “Yes,” answer line 10b below. 10a
b  Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

DAA
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TRl AL 84-2274193 Page 5
Part IV Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes No

11  Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? lla
b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b
¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes” to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,
provide detail in Part VI. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization’s activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 2

Section C. Type |l Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s). 1

Section D. All Type Ill Supporting Organizations

Yes No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI
how the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have
a significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard. 3

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).

2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes No

a Did substantially all of the organization’s activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's
involvement, one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If
“Yes,” explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization’s position that its supported organization(s) would
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part VI. 3a
b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b

DAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

G TRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL

84-2274193 Page 6

Part V

Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1

Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A — Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

(S0 E-N (VIR |\ O o

(o200 (2 1 E-N [CVIN [\ O o

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection
of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
property held for production of income (see instructions)

Other expenses (see instructions)

8

Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B — Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1

Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

la

Average monthly cash balances

1b

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

1c

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

1d

o | |0 |TO|o

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detail in Part VI):

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

w [N

AW

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

[eolll BN (o)1 [¢)]

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

w0 ([N [o (o [~

Section C — Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

(S0 E-N [OVIN | Ol | o

(o200 (2 1 E-N [CVIN [\ O o

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

[

~

|:|Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization

(see instructions).

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023

G TRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL

84- 2274193 Page 7

Part V

Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D — Distributions

Current Year

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

N |-

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required—provide details in Part VI)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

(o2l BN [o2 1 (42 1 B [OV]

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

(o2l NI (o0 [2 1 B [V | V]

Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

10

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

10

Section E — Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions

@

(ii)
Underdistributions
Pre-2023

(iii)
Distributable
Amount for 2023

Distributable amount for 2023 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2023
(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See
instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2023

From 2018

From 2019 .. .. . ...l

From 2020 ... ...

From 2021

From 2022 . il

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

=l (ol (O [o N [T fo i o]

Applied to 2023 distributable amount

Carryover from 2018 not applied (see instructions)

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

Distributions for 2023 from
Section D, line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2023 distributable amount

¢ Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2023, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6  Remaining underdistributions for 2023. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

7  Excess distributions carryover to 2024. Add lines 3]
and 4c.

8  Breakdown of line 7:

a Excess from2019 ... .......................
b Excess from 2020 ......... ... ...l
c Excess from 2021 .. ... ... ... . ... .........
d Excess from 2022 ... ... ... ... ..............
e Excess from 2023

DAA

Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2023 Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TRl AL 84-2274193 Page 8
Part VI Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part
Ill, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

DAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule B
(Form 990)

Schedule of Contributors

Attach to Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF.

Department of the Treasury . . .
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2023

Name of the organization

G TRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRI AL

Employer identification number

FOUNDATI ON, I NC. 84-2274193

Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:

Form 990 or 990-EZ

Form 990-PF

501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization

501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

N O O I P

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See
instructions.

General Rule

|X| For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000

or more (in money or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and Il. See instructions for determining a
contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

|:| For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33'/3% support test of the

regulations under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990), Part Il, line 13, 16a, or
16b, and that received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or
(2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h; or (i) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and II.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts | (entering
“N/A” in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), I, and IIl.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such
contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received
during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the
General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions
totaling $5,000 or more during the year

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990), but it
must answer “No” on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part I, line
2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990).

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF.

DAA

Schedule B (Form 990) (2023)
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Schedule B (Form 990) (2023) PAGE 1 OF 1 Page 2
Name of organization Employer identification number
Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TRI AL 84- 2274193
Part | Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.
@ (b) (©) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
1) Us DEPT OF AGRIGULTURE Person
1400 | NDEPENDENCE AVE Payroll
................................................................................ 4,708,234 | nNoncash
WASH NGTON DC 20250 (Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)
@ (b) (©) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
C TRUS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
2 | FONDATION = .. Person
700 EXPERI MENT STATION RD Payroll
................................................................................ 14,703,116 | nNoncash
LAKE ALFRED FL 33850 (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
@ (b) (©) C)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
................................................................................... Person
Payroll
........................................................................................................ Noncash
............................................................................ (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
@ (b) (©) C)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
.................................................................................. Person
Payroll
........................................................................................................ Noncash
............................................................................ (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
(a) (b) (© (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
................................................................................... Person
Payroll
........................................................................................................ Noncash
............................................................................ (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)
@) (b) (©) C)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total contributions Type of contribution
................................................................................... Person
Payroll
........................................................................................................ Noncash
............................................................................ (Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

DAA

Schedule B (Form 990) (2023)
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SCHEDULE J Compensation Information OMB No. 1545-0047
Form 990 For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
( ) Compensated Employees 2023

Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 23. .
Attach to Form 990 Open to Public
Department of the Treasury . ) : . ) ) Inspection
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. P

Name of the organizaton ~ C] TRUS RESEARCH AND FlI ELD TRI AL Employer identification number
FOUNDATI ON, I NC. 84-2274193

Part | Questions Regarding Compensation

Yes | No

la Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Ill to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
First-class or charter travel Housing allowance or residence for personal use
Travel for companions Payments for business use of personal residence
Tax indemnification and gross-up payments Health or social club dues or initiation fees
Discretionary spending account Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)

b If any of the boxes on line 1la are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment
or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If “No,” complete Part Ill to
explain 1b

2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directors, trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line
la? 2

3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization’s CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a
related organization to establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Ill.
Compensation committee Written employment contract
Independent compensation consultant Compensation survey or study
Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee

4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? 4a

b Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan? 4b

¢ Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement? Ac

If “Yes” to any of lines 4a—c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part IIl.

XX >

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of:
a The organization? 5a

x| >

If “Yes” on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part lIl.

6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:
a The organization? 6a

x| >

If “Yes” on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part lIl.

7 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed
payments not described on lines 5 and 6? If “Yes,” describe in Partnt 7 X
8 Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject
to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” describe

in Part Ill 8 X

9 If “Yes” on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in

RegUIAtIONS SECHON 53,4008 -0(C) 2 . . ottt e e e e e e e ettt ee s 9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule J (Form 990) 2023
DAA
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Schedule J (Form 990) 2023

G TRUS RESEARCH AND FIELD TRIAL

84-2274193

Page 2

Part Il

Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions, on row (ii). Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII.
Note: The sum of columns (B)(i)—(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual.

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC and/or 1099-NEC compensation

(C) Retirement and

(D) Nontaxable

(E) Total of columns

(F) Compensation

(A) Name and Title cotpense, | O Bonus fcenive | () Ober Somponaaton ©0-©) " deford on ror
compensation Form 990

TAVARA VWOOD o ... 169,017) ... O ... Q o . ... o ...169,0171 0
1 FORMER PROG MER / SEC (i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
o

2 (i)
o

3 (i)
o

4 (if)
o

5 (i)
o

6 (i)
o 0

7 (i)
o

8 (i)
o

9 (i)
o

10 (i)
o

1 (i)
o

12 (i)
o

13 (i)
o

14 (i)
o

15 (i)
o

16 )|

DAA

Schedule J (Form 990) 2023
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Schedule J (Form 990) 2023 Cl TRUS RESEARCH AND FI ELD TRI AL 84- 2274193 Page 3
Part lll Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part I, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part

for any additional information.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2023
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OMB No. 1575-0017
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2023
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organizaton C] TRUS RESEARCH AND FlI ELD TRI AL Employer identification number
FOUNDATI ON, | NC. 84- 2274193

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 11B - CRGANI ZATI ON S PROCESS TO REVIEW FORM 990
FORM 990, PART M, LINE 19 - GOVERNING DOCUMENTS DI SCLOSURE EXPLANATION

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) 2023

DAA
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84-2274193 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2024

Taxable Interest on_Investments

Description

Unrelated Exclusion Postal Acquired after usS
Amount Business Code Code 6/30/75 Obs ($ or %)

| NTEREST | NCOVE

&+

307, 658
307, 658

TOTAL

&+
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84-2274193 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2024

Form 990, Part IX, Line 24e - All Other Expenses

Total Program Management & Fund
Description Expenses Service General Raising
SURVEY / TESTING - USDA $ 114, 078 $ 114, 078 $ $
COMVUNI CATI ONS - USDA 88, 722 88, 722
SURVEY / TESTING - CRDF 76, 421 76, 421
PERSONNEL EXPENSE - CRDF 54, 400 54, 400
COMUNI CATI ONS - CRDF 10, 000 10, 000

TOTAL $ 343, 621 $ 343, 621 $ 0 $ 0
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84-2274193 Federal Statements
FYE: 6/30/2024

Schedule A, Part lll. Line 1(e)

Description Amount
US DEPT OF AGRI CULTURE $
CASH CONTRI BUTI ON 4,708, 234
C TRUS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPNMENT
CASH CONTRI BUTI ON 14,703, 116
TOTAL $ 19,411, 350
Schedule A, Part lIl, Line 2(e
Description Amount
| NTEREST | NCOVE $ 307, 658
TOTAL $ 307, 658

Schedule A, Part lll, Line 3(e)

Description Amount

M SCELLANEQUS/ OTHER | NCOVE
TOTAL

©

©“
o
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